
Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Committee Room No. 1 (Fougères Room) - Ashford 
Borough Council on Thursday, 10th May, 2018 at 10.00 am.

The Members of the Standards Committee are:-

Councillor Dehnel (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Bell (Vice-Chairman)

Cllrs. Chilton, Hicks, Howard-Smith, Knowles, Ovenden, White

Mrs C Vant – Independent Person
Mr R Brasier, Mr D Lyward – Parish Council Representatives

Agenda
Page Nos..

1.  Apologies/Substitutes

To receive notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(iii)

2.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as explained 
on the attached document:

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI)
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests

See Agenda Item 2 for further details

3.  Minutes 3 - 6

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 
12th February 2018

4.  Review of Local Government Ethical Standards Stakeholder 
Consultation by Committee on Standards in Public Life

7 - 14



DS
2nd March 2018

Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Danny Sheppard 
Tel: 01233 330349 E-mail: danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk 
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk 

http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


Agenda Item 2

Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members”below)

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to 
items on this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest 
must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the 
meeting for that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).

(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct as adopted 
by the Council on 19 July 2012, relating to items on this agenda.  The nature as 
well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda 
item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the 
meeting before the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation 
has been granted).  However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the 
Committee in the same way that a member of the public may do so.

(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed 
under (a) and (b), i.e. announcements made for transparency reasons alone, such 
as:

 Membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda 
items, or

 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close 
association with that person, or

 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close 
associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position.

[Note: an effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc; OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc, would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a 
DPI].

Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:  
(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf

(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012,
and a copy can be found in the Constitution at
http://www.ashford.gov.uk/part-5---codes-and-protocols 

(c) If any Councillor has any doubt about the existence or nature of any DPI or OSI 
which he/she may have in any item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice 
from the Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and Monitoring Officer or from 
other Solicitors in Legal and Democratic Services as early as possible, and in 
advance of the Meeting. Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
http://www.ashford.gov.uk/part-5---codes-and-protocols


This page is intentionally left blank



STD

643

Standards Committee
Minutes of a Meeting of the Standards Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 12th February 2018.

Present:

Cllr. Dehnel (Chairman);
Cllr. Mrs Bell (Vice-Chairman)
Cllrs. Hicks, Howard-Smith, Ovenden.

Mrs C Vant – Independent Person
Mr R Brasier, Mr D Lyward – Parish Council Representatives.

Also Present:

Monitoring Officer, Head of Legal and Democracy, Senior Member Services Officer.

341 Minutes
Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 31st January 
2017 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

342 Annual Report of the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
2017

The Monitoring Officer introduced his annual report for the calendar year 2017 to be 
presented to the Council on the 22nd February 2018. The report assessed activity in 
probity matters, in particular in relation to formal complaints about alleged breaches 
of protocols and codes of conduct by Borough and Parish Councillors. The report 
also included data on Ombudsman complaints as these were also handled by the 
Monitoring Officer and his staff. The relevant period related to the most recent data 
provided by the Ombudsman, namely 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017. He said that 
there had been a significant level of formal Code of Conduct complaints during 2017 
involving both Borough and Parish Councillors, as well as dealing with the first formal 
complaint under the Council’s Planning Protocol. There had also been a significant 
increase in informal complaints and contact with the Monitoring Officer regarding 
Parish Council activity, some of which may yet result in further formal complaints. 

With regard to new Code of Conduct/Planning Protocol Complaints, a summary of 
these had been included at Table 1 in the report. The Monitoring Officer considered 
there were two factors which may have in part contributed to the increase in 
complaint activity: - the increased use/misuse of social media by Councillors; and 
increased activity and local controversy in relation to preparation of Neighbourhood 
Plans and consultations on sites for inclusion in the new Borough Local Plan. The 
situation would continue to be monitored in 2018. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



STD
120218

644

In order to address the social media issue, which had given rise to more complaints 
about personal and defamatory attacks, the Monitoring Officer advised that he 
intended to prepare a draft Social Media Guidance Note for Councillors and bring 
that back to this Committee for consideration. He also recommended that the 
Council’s Code of Conduct be amended to draw attention to the need to exercise 
care when using social media. 

In response to questions from Committee Members about the interpretation and 
scope of such guidance, he said that in his view, whilst it was not practicable or 
desirable to lay down hard and fast rules, it would be important to educate and raise 
awareness of the care needed when using social media and the risks involved. 
There was also some discussion about the interpretation of “when acting in your 
capacity as a Councillor” and it was conceded that this was not a straightforward 
issue. A member of the public may perceive a Councillor to be acting as such, even 
when they may claim they were acting in a personal capacity, which was why caution 
was urged. The Committee agreed that a prescriptive ‘policy document’ may be a 
step too far, but that some common sense guidance should sit alongside the Code of 
Conduct with regard to social media usage. It was also agreed that Parish Councils 
be invited to consider making amendments to their own Codes of Conduct (most of 
which were based on the Kent Model Code) and the Monitoring Officer could 
communicate that through KALC or the Parish Clerks. A Member advised that some 
guidance on this subject was also contained within the Local Government 
Association Guide for New Councillors which was already provided to all Borough 
Councillors, and this was something else that could be referred to.

In terms of Ombudsman complaints in 2016/17 the Monitoring Officer said there had 
been 20 resolved by the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) which was a 
comparable number to the previous year (22). Only four of these complaints had 
been upheld but had all of these been ruled as maladministration with no injustice.

With regard to other matters within the report, the Monitoring Officer firstly referred to 
a consultation that had recently been launched by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life and said that this was a subject he intended to report back on to this 
Committee ahead of the deadline for consultation responses in May 2018. Members 
considered this may be a good opportunity to raise the issues that had arisen 
following the decision in the Localism Act to remove some powers to intervene or 
impose sanctions. Some Members reported how this had resulted in a toxic 
atmosphere at some Parish Councils. The Monitoring Officer said he would produce 
a draft response to the consultation and circulate that to Committee Members, prior 
to bringing it back to a Standards Committee meeting to sign off the final response 
ahead of the deadline. 

In response to other issues raised within the Monitoring Officer’s report the following 
responses were given: -

 The exercise of seeking updated Disclosable Pecuniary Interest registration 
forms from all Borough, Town and Parish Councillors was underway and 
many had already been returned. This was a substantial piece of work for his 
team. Whilst some cross checking took place it was extremely difficult to 

Page 4



STD
120218

645

thoroughly check every form for completeness. Comprehensive guidance on 
how to complete the forms had been issued, and the responsibility really did 
lay with the elected Councillor.

 Monitoring Officer activity had taken up a lot more of his time in the past year. 
Some investigation work had had to be externalised and that was not unusual 
in any event because the Monitoring Officer did need to retain some distance 
in case matters came back to the Standards Committee. He did not consider 
that an additional permanent resource to deal with probity matters was 
needed at this time as he did have an experienced legal team who could 
assist and the work did very much come in ‘peaks and troughs’. He did though 
intend to appoint probably two Deputy Monitoring Officers from the Council’s 
existing staff which would add a level of profile and resilience to the work. The 
Committee said it would like to formally note the increase in activity and 
wished this to be closely monitored. 

 Parish Councils were informed that they were at liberty to attempt to resolve 
complaints informally or with adjudication from other Parish Councils and this 
would certainly be welcomed, but as a rule Parishes did not appear to have 
their own procedures for dealing with complaints and preferred to refer them 
to the Monitoring Officer. There was no ability for the Borough Council to 
charge for this work. One of the Parish Council Representatives advised that 
Parishes could also use the local branch of the Kent Association of Local 
Councils (KALC) for this purpose and he was aware of instances where this 
had happened in the past. 

Resolved:

That (i) the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2017 be received, 
noted and forwarded to Full Council for approval.

(ii) the Council’s Code of Conduct be amended to include a social 
media clause as set out in Section B of the report.

(iii) the Monitoring Officer report to future meetings of the Standards 
Committee in relation to the following matters: -

(a) Draft guidance on social media usage for Councillors which, 
when adopted by the Council, could be sent to Parish Councils 
inviting them to consider adopting the guidance for their own 
Councils

(b) A response to the consultation by the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life as referred to in Section C of the report

___________________________________________________________________

Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact Danny Sheppard:
Telephone: 01233 330349  Email: danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
10 MAY 2018

REVIEW OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICAL STANDARDS
STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION
BY COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS

IN PUBLIC LIFE (CSPL)

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE
AND MONITORING OFFICER

1. Introduction

The Localism Act 2011 fundamentally changed the local government 
standards regime in England.  Some six years after the new regime came into 
effect in mid-2012, the CSPL, which advises the Prime Minister on ethical 
standards across the whole of public life, is undertaking a review of local 
government ethical standards.  As part of this review, CSPL is holding a 
public stakeholder consultation.  The consultation closes on Friday 18 May 
2018.

2. Terms of Reference of Review

The terms of reference for the review are to:

1. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in 
England for:

a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors;
b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process;
c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct;
d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and
e. Whistleblowing.

2. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are 
conducive to high standards of conduct in local government;

3. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and

4. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make 
recommendations for any measures that could be put in place to 
prevent and address such intimidation.

The review will consider all levels of local government in England, including 
town and parish councils, principal authorities, combined authorities (including 
Metro Mayors) and the Greater London Authority (including the Mayor of 
London).

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

3. The Consultation Questions and Suggested Responses
 

The CSPL has posed the following specific questions.  Comments prepared 
by the Monitoring Officer and based on experience over the past six years, 
are provided in bold text after each question or set of questions.  This is 
intended to assist members of the Standards Committee in their consideration 
not to limit the views members may wish to submit in any response.  Members 
are therefore asked to provide any further views so that a final response can 
be prepared.

General Questions

a. Are the existing structures, processes and practices in place working to 
ensure high standards of conduct by local councillors? If not, please 
say why.

b. What, if any, are the most significant gaps in the current ethical 
standards regime for local government?

ABC Response

ABC currently has 43 members and operates the ‘strong leader’ model 
of executive government.  Structures are determined locally, driven by 
the provisions of primary legislation.  There is no longer a national body 
to oversee arrangements or provide guidance on ethical standards.  In 
Ashford, a ‘Kent Model’ of Code of Conduct and Arrangements for 
Dealing with Complaints were developed based on the previous national 
code as this was considered preferable to ensure consistency, 
continuity and clearly defined expectations.  The Council has also 
adopted – and recently reviewed – a Good Practice Protocol for 
councillors dealing with planning matters.

The Council’s processes for receiving, considering and investigating 
complaints are therefore tried and tested and regarded as sound and 
effective, although the level of complaint has been low since the new 
regime came into effect, although during 2017 numbers of complaints 
did rise, principally on account of social media use/misuse by 
councillors.

Probity and Code of Conduct training is provided for all Members upon 
election and the Council has in place an experienced Independent 
Person to fulfil the statutory role required.  The Council’s Standards 
Committee is the principal forum for consideration of probity and ethical 
issues and receives and considers the Monitoring Officer’s Annual 
Report each year on Code of Conduct, probity and Ombudsman 
complaint matters.

In relation to gaps in the local government regime the Council is aware 
of ongoing concerns nationally regarding (a) the effectiveness of the 
current range of sanctions available in the event of findings of breach of 
the Code of Conduct and (b) the legal scope of Disclosable Pecuniary 

Page 8



3

Interests.  These matters are picked up separately under the relevant 
questions below.

Codes of conduct

c. Are local authority adopted codes of conduct for councillors clear and 
easily understood? Do the codes cover an appropriate range of 
behaviours? What examples of good practice, including induction 
processes, exist?

d. A local authority has a statutory duty to ensure that its adopted code of 
conduct for councillors is consistent with the Seven Principles of Public 
Life and that it includes appropriate provision (as decided by the local 
authority) for registering and declaring councillors’ interests. Are these 
requirements appropriate as they stand? If not, please say why.

ABC Response

The ABC Code follows a ‘Kent Model’ developed in line with the former 
national Code.  It is very much based upon the Seven Principles of 
Public Life and it is considered to cover an appropriate range of conduct 
and declaration of a wider range of interests than just the statutory DPIs.  
The ‘Kent Model’ requires declaration of ‘Other Significant Interests’ 
(OSIs) and non-participation in decisions where such interests arise.  
Having said this, Codes of Conduct must be kept up to date with social 
developments and changes in public perception and opinion.  For this 
reason ABC recently agreed to promote amendments to its Code to 
better capture the risks inherent in the growing use of social media by 
councillors.

Investigations and decisions on allegations

e. Are allegations of councillor misconduct investigated and decided fairly 
and with due process?

i What processes do local authorities have in place for investigating 
and deciding upon allegations? Do these processes meet 
requirements for due process? Should any additional safeguards be 
put in place to ensure due process?

ii Is the current requirement that the views of an Independent 
Person must be sought and taken into account before deciding 
on an allegation sufficient to ensure the objectivity and fairness 
of the decision process? Should this requirement be 
strengthened? If so, how?

iii Monitoring Officers are often involved in the process of 
investigating and deciding upon code breaches. Could 
Monitoring Officers be subject to conflicts of interest or undue 

Page 9



4

pressure when doing so? How could Monitoring Officers be 
protected from this risk?

ABC Response

The ‘Arrangements’ adopted by the Council for dealing with Code 
breach complaints are comprehensive and were developed as a Kent-
wide model based upon experience with earlier standards regimes.  As 
such they are considered robust, proportionate and fair.  The 
involvement of the Independent Person at appropriate stages is 
safeguarded in the adopted Arrangements.  In general the arrangements 
under the new regime work better and in a more proportionate way by 
giving councils greater flexibility to manage complaints.  It is considered 
important that the Monitoring Officer retains an ability to advise and 
guide Standards Committee and any Hearing Panels in the event of 
matters being referred for investigation.  For this reason, investigations 
should be carried out independently either by suitably qualified staff or 
by external investigators.

Sanctions

f. Are existing sanctions for councillor misconduct sufficient?

i What sanctions do local authorities use when councillors are 
found to have breached the code of conduct? Are these 
sanctions sufficient to deter breaches and, where relevant, to 
enforce compliance?

ii Should local authorities be given the ability to use additional 
sanctions? If so, what should these be?

ABC Response

Under the former national regime, a wider range of sanctions was 
available in the event of a breach of the Code of Conduct.  In particular, 
it was possible in serious cases to suspend a councillor or even 
disqualify.  Although these were rarely used, they did provide options in 
the most serious or persistent cases.  Under the current regime, the 
range of sanctions is set out in the adopted Arrangements but is more 
limited and relies upon public censure as the principal sanction.  Other 
possible sanctions are limiting access to resources, requiring training to 
be given or recommending removal from certain committees or roles.  
However, the latter requires co-operation from group leaders and full 
Council and so relies upon party discipline.  Criminal prosecution for 
certain failures regarding pecuniary interest declaration is obviously 
available only in a very narrow context and is not a sanction available to 
Standards Committees.

Discussion about the appropriateness of the more limited range of 
sanctions has been ongoing nationally ever since the new regime was 
introduced in 2012.  There is a school of thought that depriving 

Page 10



5

councillors of their representative role – through suspension or 
disqualification – is inappropriate for an elected office.  On the other 
hand, having nothing stronger than censure in cases of serious or 
persistent misconduct is seen as equally inappropriate by many.  The 
options of suspension, or perhaps some kind of ‘recall’ right (whereby a 
councillor would have to seek re-election) are therefore seen by some as 
necessary for use in the most serious cases, provided appropriate 
safeguards are put in place.

The Council is aware that in the past CSPL has itself expressed doubts 
about whether the new “slimmed down arrangements” would prove 
sufficient (for example in its publication “Standards Matter” in January 
2013).  Also in its Annual Report in September 2014 the Committee 
considered that:

“the effectiveness of the sanctions regime for non-adherence to 
local authority codes of conduct, which apart from criminal 
prosecution provides only for censure or suspension from a 
particular committee, remains an issue of concern.  We are aware 
that there have been recent individual cases that illustrate this, in 
particular the lack of a sanction to suspend councillors who have 
seriously breached the Code of Conduct.  In contrast to the recent 
public debate on parliamentary standards calling for greater 
sanctions, tightening of codes and a greater independent element, 
local government is now largely self-regulated with no systematic 
approach to conduct issues and limited sanctions.  There remains 
in our view a significant risk under these arrangements that 
inappropriate conduct by local authority members will not be 
dealt with effectively, eroding public confidence and trust in local 
government”.

It is worth noting as well that in 2013 in Thanet an Independent Members 
Report to the Council identified that there had been occasions then 
where councillors had stated they did not intend to comply with 
standards hearing outcomes because of the absence of meaningful 
sanctions.

Whilst this Council has no experience of the problems alluded to in 
these other reports, it recognises there is a credible argument to 
consider the introduction of a more powerful sanction such as 
temporary or partial suspension provided appropriate safeguards and 
procedures are put in place to ensure its use only in the most serious 
cases.

Declaring interests and conflicts of interest

g. Are existing arrangements to declare councillors’ interests and manage 
conflicts of interest satisfactory? If not please say why.

i A local councillor is under a legal duty to register any pecuniary 
interests (or those of their spouse or partner), and cannot 
participate in discussion or votes that engage a disclosable 

Page 11



6

pecuniary interest, nor take any further steps in relation to that 
matter, although local authorities can grant dispensations under 
certain circumstances. Are these statutory duties appropriate as 
they stand?

ii What arrangements do local authorities have in place to declare 
councillors’ interests, and manage conflicts of interest that go 
beyond the statutory requirements? Are these satisfactory? If 
not, please say why.

ABC Response

As already indicated, the Council’s Code of Conduct does include a duty 
to declare interests – and withdraw from meetings – on a significantly 
wider basis than just the statutory DPIs.  Indeed the Council has 
adopted very much best practice in this regard by ensuring each agenda 
for each public committee meeting has a first item under which 
members must declare interests in these categories or indeed other 
interests on a voluntary basis for transparency reasons.  Each agenda 
includes a detailed explanation of the rules on declarations.  This 
process helps promote an effective, open culture of declaration of 
interests.

However, there remains significant concern among practitioners and 
some members about the lack of clarity about the legal scope of the DPI 
regime in some circumstances.  This is particularly unsatisfactory 
bearing in mind that criminal liability can arise from breaching the 
statutory DPI rules and it is imperative therefore that the rules are clear, 
clearly understood and consistently applied.  At present this is not the 
case.

The fundamental problem is in the wording of the Localism Act which 
requires members to declare interests (and not participate at meetings) 
when they have a DPI “in any matter to be considered at a meeting”.  
Under the former regime, the situation was much clearer as an interest 
arose where a matter under consideration “relates to or is likely to 
affect” the interest, thus creating a nexus between the item of business 
and the incidence of interest.  This nexus is absent from the Localism 
Act regime and it creates significant uncertainty as to when a DPI exists 
in certain situations.

The problem is best illustrated by a simple and common situation from 
the standard planning application decision-making process.  Example:  
A councillor who is a member of the Council’s Planning Committee lives 
next to a development site.  He owns his home and believes the 
development is likely to materially affect his amenity and value of his 
house.  The application comes before the Committee for decision.  Many 
Monitoring Officers would not regard the councillor’s land interest as a 
DPI in this situation.  This is because the councillor’s land is not the 
subject of the decision, albeit that the decision would affect his land 
interest.  However, some Monitoring Officers do regard the councillor’s 

Page 12



7

land interest as a DPI in the planning decision on the basis the interest 
could be said to be “in the matter to be considered” since it would be 
affected by it and the public might have expected the legislation to apply 
in this way.

It is particularly unsatisfactory that such lack of clarity should surround 
a key part of the current ethical standards regime.  It is imperative that 
the matter should be clarified and resolved in the public interest, 
especially since criminal liability may turn on the interpretation in a 
particular case.

Whistleblowing

h. What arrangements are in place for whistleblowing, by the public, 
councillors, and officials? Are these satisfactory?

ABC Response

A whistleblowing policy is in place at the Council.  It is primarily 
available to officers (and employees of contractors).  Members of the 
public would normally be directed to the Council’s complaints 
procedures or to statutory officers for specific areas of complaint.  The 
Council has no experience of a councillor being unable to raise and 
pursue a concern through normal internal channels.  The arrangements 
are considered satisfactory.

Improving standards

i. What steps could local authorities take to improve local government 
ethical standards?

j. What steps could central government take to improve local government 
ethical standards?

ABC Response

Increasing the visibility and accessibility of the code of conduct and 
complaint process as part of website redesign and digital 
transformation projects would raise awareness and make the system 
easier to use.
Also providing more structured guidance around the risk of misuse of 
social media could help reduce the incidence of complaints.

ABC is proposing to take steps on each of these matters.

In terms of central government, early consideration of the issue of 
sanctions, and the legal scope of the DPI regime would help raise 
confidence and provide greater clarity in the system.

Page 13



8

Intimidation of local councillors

k. What is the nature, scale, and extent of intimidation towards local 
councillors?

i What measures could be put in place to prevent and address 
this intimidation?

ABC Response

The personal contact details of members are generally in the public 
domain but in exceptional cases these can be removed if there is 
evidence of a risk of intimidation or violence.  Details have been 
removed or withheld in a small number of cases at Ashford.

In December 2017 the CSPL published a report “Intimidation in Public 
Life”.  This arose principally from the level of intimidation experienced 
by parliamentary candidates at the 2017 General Election.  Widespread 
use of social media platforms were seen as the most significant factor 
driving intimidating behaviour.  The report makes a number of 
recommendations relevant to the local government sector and in 
particular the following measures are supported:

 proposed legislation to shift some balance of liability for illegal 
content to social media companies and to ensure removal of 
intimidatory content.

 establishment of social media reporting teams during election 
campaigns to ensure swift action on intimidatory content

 political parties themselves setting clear expectations in a joint 
code of conduct about behaviour expected of their members 
prohibiting intimidatory behaviour.

 possible creation of new electoral offences on intimidating 
behaviour.

 better response mechanisms and training for police on 
intimidation in election campaigns.

4. Recommendation

IT IS RECOMMENDED that the suggested responses to the CSPL 
Consultation be considered and amended or supplemented as appropriate 
prior to submission.

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Review of Local Government Ethical Standards Stakeholder Consultation by Committee on Standards in Public Life

